
The Traverse Area District Library will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services to individuals with disabilities at 
the meeting upon at least 3 days’ notice to the Library. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should 
contact the Library Administrative Office by emailing publiccomment@tadl.org or calling 231-932-8500. 

 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. Call to Order       
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Approval of Agenda 
4. Public Comment*      
5. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting - April 18, 2024     
                          Study Session & Retreat - May 16, 2024  

b. Department Reports 
c. Finance and Facilities Committee Report – June 4, 2024 
d. Policy and Personnel Committee Report – June 4, 2024 

1. Policy Revision: ACH Policy 2.9 
2. Policy Revision: Art Exhibition Policy 4.07 
3. Policy Revision: Display Case Policy 4.08 

e. Financial Reports – April and May 
f. Member Library Communications – FLPL | IPL | PCL 
g. Friends of TADL Report – Jud Barclay, President 
h. Correspondence 

6. Items Removed from the Consent Calendar 
7. Director Report 
8. Old Business 

a. Millage Back-up Plan Approval  
9. New Business 

a. 2023 Audit Review and Acceptance 
b. Michigan Debate Taskforce Endorsement Request 
c. Discussion: 2024 Library User Survey Results 

10. Public Comment* 
11. Trustee Comment 

a. Sharing Ideas 
12. Closed Session (if needed) 
13. Adjournment 

 

* If you wish to speak during the Public Comment section of the meeting, please (1) wait until you are 

recognized; (2) approach the podium and use the microphone; (3) state your name and the county and 
township or city in which you reside; and (4) limit your comments to 3 minutes. Please sign in at the podium.   

AGENDA 

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
Thursday, June 20, 2024 at 4:00pm 

Fife Lake Public Library 
77 Lakecrest Ln., Fife Lake, MI 49633 

 

mailto:publiccomment@tadl.org


 

(approved) 
Page 1 of 3 

 

    
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by President Pakieser at 4:00pm. Present were: Pakieser 
(President); Jones (Vice President); Odgers (Treasurer); Gedman and Deyo (Trustees). Beuthin 
(Trustee) and Vickery (Secretary) were absent. Also present were: Howard (Director); Baldwin, 
Morey, and Carpenter (Staff). 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

All members in attendance recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America.  
 
President Pakieser recognized that Secretary Vickery was absent and appointed Jones as Acting 
Secretary for the meeting with Jones accepting. 

 
3. Approval of the Agenda 

It was MOVED by Odgers, SUPPORTED by Gedman, to approve the agenda as presented. Motion 
CARRIED.   

 
4. Public Comment 

President Pakieser opened the floor for public comment. There was none.  
  
5. Consent Calendar 

a. Approval of Minutes - Regular Meeting of January 18, 2024 
b. Department Reports 
c. Finance and Facilities Committee Report – February 6, 2024 
d. Policy and Personnel Committee Report – February 6, 2024 
e. Financial Report 
f. Member Library Communications – FLPL | IPL | PCL 
g. Friends of TADL Report – Jud Barclay, President 
h. Correspondence 

 
It was MOVED by Odgers, SUPPORTED by Gedman, to accept and affirm receipt of the consent 
calendar information as presented. Motion CARRIED. 

  
6. Items Removed from the Consent Agenda 

There were no items removed from the Consent Calendar. 
 
7. Presentation: Talking Book Library, Anita Chouinard 

Anita Chouinard, Larry Gorton Talking Book Library (TBL) Manager, noted that the TBL provides free 
audio and Braille materials to visually, physically and reading impaired patrons to eight (8) counties, 
including Grand Traverse county and seven other surrounding counties. With a generous donation 
from a long-time patron of TBL, the department was renamed after the donor, Larry Gorton, and 
several adaptive technology pieces were added to TADL’s Library of Things. Chouinard showed the 

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
MINUTES 

Thursday, April 18, 2024 at 4:00pm 
McGuire Community Room 

610 Woodmere Ave., MI 49686 

Thursday, January 21, 2021 at 4:00pm 
Virtual Meeting via Zoom 

 



 

(approved) 
Page 2 of 3 

 

board a lighted magnifier, talking ruler, talking color decoder, and a hand-held media player. She 
currently does outreach to ten (10) senior living facilities along with a second staff member who 
provides digital literacy to the residents. The majority of the TBL services provided are handled by 
phone and through the mail, however Chouinard reports that there are about 70-90 walk-in patron 
interactions per month. TBL helps many patrons with dyslexia and conditions such as Parkinson’s. 
Items Chouinard would like to add to the Library of Things collection would be talking graphic 
scientific calculators for students, children’s STEM Kits, and Braille board games such as Monopoly.  
 

8. Director Report 

Howard confirmed her report and highlighted the following: 
• The on-site audit work is finished and Howard thanked Baldwin for her work with the auditors.  

• Howard attended Library Advocacy Day in Lansing. She met with state Representative Betsy 
Coffia and Senator John DaMoose and discussed the need for more funding for libraries. The 
Library of Michigan is looking at several pieces of proposed legislation, including remote 
meeting access for board members and the Freedom To Read, neither of which have gone to 
the legislature yet. Overall, it was a good day complete with a fantastic line-up of bookmobiles 
from attending libraries.  

• Andy Schuck, Head of Youth Services, is coordinating the Feed America program through the 
library, which provides free food for children 0-18 years old. Food will be made available for 10 
weeks beginning in June and ending in August: 5 mornings a week at the Main branch, 2 
mornings at East Bay Branch, and 2 mornings at Kingsley Branch. Volunteers are needed.  

• Bathroom renovations are going well. Bret Boulter, Facilities Manager, is following up to remedy 
a few issues.   

• TADL has received permission to show ABC’s of Book Banning at the board study 
session/retreat.  

• Howard, Baldwin, McKenna and Myers attended the annual Public Library Association 
Conference in April. A summary report will be provided at the next regular board meeting.   

 
9. Old Business 

a. Meeting Room AV Updates 
TADL has had an increasing expectation and demand for hybrid meeting accommodations. 
Meeting room A/V upgrade quotes from two companies were included in the packet for review. 
Because TADL has received more inquiries for hybrid meetings and since there is a 5-year 
window to complete the elevator updates, Howard asked the board to approve the meeting 
room A/V upgrades quoted by Ethan Fitzpatrick Production (EFP) now and postpone the 
elevator updates to a later date. Morey, Assistant Director for Technology, answered questions 
from the board regarding the quote comparisons and noted that the equipment EFP included is 
high-end, popular in many schools and churches, and at the same time non-technical staff will 
be able to easily interact with it. He also noted that this upgrade is robust enough to avoid 
coming back to the board for another upgrade in the near future. It was MOVED by Jones, 
SUPPORTED by Odgers, to approve an expenditure from the Public Improvement Fund to EFP for 
an amount not to exceed $149,000 for the meeting room A/V upgrades as quoted and 
presented.  
A roll call vote was taken with the following results:  
 Jones – aye  Odgers – aye   Pakieser – aye  Deyo – absent
 Gedman – aye  Beuthin – absent  Vickery – absent  
Motion CARRIED with 5 ayes. 
  

10. New Business  
a. Fife Lake DDA 



 

(approved) 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Howard attended the Fife Lake Downtown Development Association (DDA) special meeting. It 
was her understanding that the DDA would like TADL to consider not opting out of the tax 
capture. Per policy, industry resources, and advice of Counsel it is recommended that libraries 
opt out when available. In addition, if the millage passes in August, TADL is automatically opted 
out of all tax captures except for Brownfield. It was noted that the Fife Lake Public Library Board 
could choose to enter into an MOU with the Fife Lake DDA to return funds to the DDA, if they 
chose to. It was MOVED by Jones, SUPPORTED by Gedman, to follow TADL’s tax capture policy 
to opt out of the Fife Lake DDA tax capture for reasons presented in discussion and in Howard’s 
memo to the board included in the packet. Motion CARRIED.    

 
b. Discussion: Millage Back-up Plan 

Howard noted that the current millage vote is scheduled for August 6. If the millage did not pass 
on August 6, the deadline for the November ballot language is due eight days later, on August 
14. This discussion item has been moved to the study session/retreat in May.   

 
11. Public Comment 

President Pakieser opened the floor for public comment. The following people addressed the board: 
Heather Brady, TADL Marketing and Communications Manager, invited everyone to the upcoming 
and biggest yet Makerfest, in which TADL partnered with Grand Traverse County Recycle Smart this 
year and will feature nearly fifty exhibitors.  
 

12. Trustee Comment 
Odgers noted several students in the audience and thanked them for attending. She also 
appreciated the presence of a representative from the League of Women Voters in the audience. 

 
13. Closed Session (if needed) 

A closed session was not needed. 
 
14. Adjournment 

With a motion to adjourn by Odgers, supported by Deyo, President Pakieser adjourned the meeting 
at 5:00pm.  

 
Respectfully submitted,   Approved by board vote on June 20, 2024 

 
 
 

V. Carpenter, Recording Secretary  M. Vickery, Board Secretary 
 



(approved) 
Page 1 of 2 

 

    
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by President Pakieser at 12:00pm. Present were: Pakieser 
(President); Jones (Vice President); Odgers (Treasurer); Vickery (Secretary); Beuthin, Deyo, and 
Gedman (Trustees). Also present were: Howard (Director); Carpenter, Monette, Brady, Baldwin 
Staff).   
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America was not recited due to lack of 
an American flag.   

 
3. Approval of the Agenda 

It was MOVED by Beuthin, SUPPORTED by Odgers, to approve the agenda as presented. Motion 
CARRIED.   
 

4. Public Comment 
President Pakieser opened the floor for public comment. There was none. 

 
5. Warm-up Exercise with President Pakieser and Trustee Beuthin 

The group engaged in a collaborative exercise sharing contributive strengths they each bring to the 
board and expressed their goals for the retreat.  

 
6. The Library of the Future 

a. Well-funded 
On funding, Howard noted that Richard Lewis and Amy Shamroe are heading the Yes 
Committee for the TADL millage and provided their contact information for volunteering. 
The Yes Committee kick-off plans are set for early June.  

 
Trustees discussed back-up plan options if the millage failed August 6. Due to a limited 
turnaround time to file for the November election, Howard will have Counsel draw up ballot 
language for three different scenarios: 1) a straight renewal request, 2) the same 1.1mils 
request identical to the August 6 ballot, and 3) a request to increase the millage to 1.3mils. 
A decision will be made at the June regular meeting which one to go forward with should 
the need arise after the August voting results are tabulated.  

 
b. Technology 

Following a brief break, the group discussed technology trends shaping the future and the 
impact on libraries. Howard noted that the innovations reported in a supplemental reading 
packet, were either already implemented or were in progress at TADL. Morey answered 
questions from the trustees, many about the future of AI in libraries. He was confident that 
TADL is in a good place in the area of technology, however since it is a fast and ever-
changing environment, his team must constantly lean into the discomforts to stay on top of 
the tech needs of the community within the abilities of the library.  

Board of Trustees Study Session and Retreat 
MINUTES 

Thursday, May 16, 2024 at 12:00pm 
Kingsley Branch Library 

213 S. Brownson Ave., Kingsley, MI 49649 
 



(approved) 
Page 2 of 2 

 

c. Promotes Civic Engagement & Freedom to Read 

• Video: ABC’s of Book Banning 
Trustees watched a short video documentary on book banning and participated in a 
training exercise from both a challenger and a trustee position. 

 

• Future Discussions Share 
Beuthin then noted suggestions submitted for future discussion including: update 
on the strategic plan; how to encourage and ensure community commitment to 
public libraries; how to expand the role of library and park relationships; 
developing a connection between non-profits and volunteers, and revisiting adult 
literacy needs.  

 
Time did not allow for further discussion of the remaining two topics: Cultivating Good 
Community and Libraries as Leaders. These will be discussed at future board meetings.  

 
 
7. Public Comment 

There was none.  
 
8. Adjournment 

President Pakieser adjourned the meeting at 4:00pm.  
 

 
Respectfully submitted,   Approved by board vote on June 20, 2024 

 
 
 

V. Carpenter, Recording Secretary  M. Vickery, Board Secretary 
 
 
 



Departmental Reports
for the months of April and May
(June 20, 2024 Board Meeting)

Adult Services
April Highlights:

● Nature programs ruled in April - 120 people packed the McGuire Room to hear the Morel
King, Anthony Williams give his annual talk about hunting those elusive edibles. To
celebrate Earth Day, we partnered with Archangel Ancient Tree Archive to give out 100
Black Willow saplings cloned from the champion trees found on the grounds of The
Commons.

● We held the 26th annual Poets’ Night Out live reading event this month with over 90
people joining us at the City Opera House to hear the winning entries.

● Programming partnerships this month included Interlochen Center for the Arts (Edmonia
opera preview), Senior Center (weekly crafting and current events sessions), Embody
TC (yoga), NMCAA (money management), Northwestern Michigan College (author talk),
as well as the Traverse Area Historical Society and Grand Traverse Area Genealogical
Society (monthly meetings/programs).

● Melissa attended the Public Library Association Conference in Columbus, OH during the
first week of the month. Highlights of sessions included programming for adults with
intellectual and developmental disabilities, indigenous inclusion in the library, and
creating restorative spaces for mothers in the library. (And the Mystery Authors panel!)

May Highlights:
● Wellness programs are proving to be popular and our patrons are asking for more! This

month we held yoga sessions attended by dozens, two sessions on pelvic health, two
programs introducing mindfulness, and Tai Chi.

● This month we partnered with Michigan Writers for a writing program. May is also the
month that we annually partner with members of the Traverse CIty AAPI committee and
NMC. This is our 3rd year of AAPI Heritage Month celebration events and 120 people
joined us for this year’s film and author talk.

Local History Collection
April & May Highlights:

● The second floor display highlighting resources from the LHC for these two months had
a theme of rain and rainbows and also showcased TADL’s sheet music collection,
courtesy of Liz Bannister, along with her photo and a short biography of the local
musician.

● We continue to be contacted by local organizations, community members, and loved
ones of former community members who have items with a GTC connection to donate to
the LHC. Highlights from this spring include records from NMEAC on several lawsuits; a
handmade quilt to add to the Melstrom Family collection; and the original report,
photographs, and ground core sample from the 1973 Williamsburg gas eruptions.

Respectfully submitted,
Melissa A. McKenna
Adult Services Dept Head

https://www.ancienttreearchive.org/


Youth Services

April - Youth Services

The TADL MakerFest occurred on April 20th at the Grand
Traverse County Civic Center. Almost 50 organizations and
businesses participated and over 510 community members
attended. This 4 hour event included a new collaboration with
the Recycle Smart department of Grand Traverse County, which
influenced a more pronounced Earth Day theme for both the
program itself (TADL MakerFest: Special Earth Day Edition), as
well as the activities that our exhibitors made available to our
community members. More information on participating
organizations can be found on our event listing. A brief video
tour of the event can be accessed here. We were happy with
the new location, especially the indoor part when the day turned
out to be cool and windy spring day. We’re looking forward to
working with our partners in the STEAM/Maker Alliance as well
as community partners at Grand Traverse County Parks and
Recycle Smart to continue developing this event to make it the
most memorable and environmentally friendly STEAM event in
Lower Northern Michigan.

Youth Services continued our outreach and weekly programming, keeping our young community
members and families engaged in library offerings.Our Early Literacy offerings really took off in
April, as cool weather pushed families inside:

● Early Literacy programs: 28
● Early Literacy program attendance: 622 (an increase of 87.3% from April 2023)
● Afterschool and outreach programs: 25
● Afterschool and outreach attendance: 1,158

With cool April weather also came more opportunities to interact with our local families at the
Youth Services desk. In total, we answered 1,228 reference questions (a 17.6% increase over
April 2023), broken down in the following categories:

● Walk-in questions: 1,077 (a 14.9% increase over April 2023)
● Phone questions: 137
● Digital questions: 14

May - Youth Services

May brought the start of school Summer Reading promotion, but not before we had two weeks
of storytime and afterschool programming. In total for these in-house programs, we had the
following statistics:

● Early Literacy programs: 15
● Early Literacy program attendance: 344
● Afterschool and weekend programs: 12
● Afterschool and weekend attendance: 206
● Summer Reading Outreach visits: 10
● Summer Reading Outreach students visited: 1,645

https://www.tadl.org/event/2024-tadl-makerfest-earth-day-special-edition-14084
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1VLQODA6PXgQ01wCKveSqxQIHSn6W6b-S/view?usp=sharing


Statistics for the service desk will be updated shortly due to staff shortages over the last half of
May.

Youth Services staff spent much of the latter half of the month promoting the
Summer Reading Club in elementary schools and also decorating the
department around the Adventure Begins at Your Library theme. In total, we
visited 9 elementary schools and passed out Summer Reading Club
information bookmarks to all TCAPS schools, as well as The Children’s
House and GTACS elementary school. Not all schools were able to
schedule in-person visits but we did talk to 1,645 students during this time
period and handed out bookmarks to 5,125 students in our district.

Staff are really excited about this year’s Summer Reading theme and
took the down time from lack of programming to really dive in and
remake the Youth Services department into Camp Youth Services.
Included in this fun revival are: a tent opening at our entrance; a canoe
and river photo op; trees made out of pillars; a “Would you rather?”
voting contest on one of the pillars; a river reading minutes tracker
posted on the curvy wall above our service desk; and hot air balloons

whose baskets are filled with favorite book characters. It is a delightful space and we have
heard so many positive comments from patrons. Please visit when you have a moment.

Respectfully submitted by Andy Schuck
Head of Youth Services

Teen Services
At the end of the school year, the Twisted Quills, our
teen writing group, hosted a “go live” event for their
website. The website includes the first chapters of the
participants' books, book covers, blurbs, and
biographies for the authors and support staff. Parents,
friends, and supportive adults attended to see the
website launch and listen to the teens read their first
chapters out loud. They also produced a zine for the
event. The zine can be picked up in Teen Services
with a color version soon to be available to check out.
Check out the website:
https://twistedquillscom.wordpress.com/

Once again, I must thank our facilitator Jaquie Burke for bringing her enthusiasm and providing
the structure necessary to make the teen writing program successful.

Linda Smith
Head of Teen Services

https://twistedquillscom.wordpress.com/meet-the-twisted-quills/
https://twistedquillscom.wordpress.com/meet-the-twisted-quills/
https://twistedquillscom.wordpress.com/


Sight & Sound
Spring in Sight and Sound started off with a bang! In the McGuire Community Room, we
presented a sneak peak of Edmonia, a new opera! Working with the Interlochen Center
for the Arts, we live streamed the performance to the TADL Facebook and YouTube
pages. We also continued our partnership with Versiti, holding blood drives to replenish
this vital community resource. We also hosted the League of Women Voters Grand
Traverse Area in April and May, with informative events on media literacy and
composting.

We have added some new items to the Library of Things as well, including ¾ size
electric guitars, small synthesizers, and a 3D printing pen kit. We brought 6 of our
synthesizers to the MakerFest in April, and they were a huge hit with the kids. We’re
really excited to bring these music makers to them!

April Reference Questions

Digital: 93
Phone: 322
Walk-in: 2044

TADL Meeting Room Stats APRIL 2024

Total:201
TADL meetings:27
Personal/Outside Group Meetings: 174
Paid Meetings: 9
Unpaid Meetings: 192
Walk-ins: 23
Advance Reservation: 178

Number of Meetings by Room APRIL 2024

McGuire Room: 38
Thirlby Room: 94
Study Room D: 69

—----------------------------------------------------------------

May Reference Questions

Digital: 101
Phone: 265
Walk-in: 1531

TADL Meeting Room Stats MAY 2024

Total:162
TADL meetings:27
Personal/Outside Group Meetings: 135
Paid Meetings: 10



Unpaid Meetings: 152
Walk-ins: 22
Advance Reservation: 140

Number of Meetings by Room MAY 2024

McGuire Room: 38
Thirlby Room: 60
Study Room D: 64

Respectfully Submitted,
Josh Denby
Department Head, Sight and Sound

Circulation
April Circulation Numbers - Combined Branches (Woodmere, Kingsley, East Bay)
New patron accounts created: ↓303 (vs 1800 last year)
Curbside pickups for April 2024: 15
Circulation Statistics for MeLCat, April 2024:

● TADL items sent to borrowing institutions: ↑1267 (vs 1251 last year)
● TADL items received from lending institutions: ↑2347 (vs 1929 last year)

May Circulation Numbers - Combined Branches (Woodmere, Kingsley, East Bay)
New patron accounts created: ↑542 (vs 206 last year)
Curbside pickups for May 2024: 17
Circulation Statistics for MeLCat, May 2024:

● TADL items sent to borrowing institutions: ↑1326 (vs 1251 last year)
● TADL items received from lending institutions: ↑2306 (vs 1929 last year)

Respectfully Submitted,
Christina Meyers
Head of Circulation

Marketing and Communications
April
Summer reading club (all strategic plan areas) comes early to the
marketing department, as all items for school visits need to be
in-hand by the end of the month. Combine that with an eclipse
(targeted outreach), our Read-a-Thon (innovative engagement), the
bookmark contest (innovative engagement), an earlier-than-usual
MakerFest … April flew right by!

May
The pace continued through May, with marketing support for our
autism certification program (inclusive space), our school library card
mailing (targeted outreach), and TADL Waves (innovative
engagement), in addition to producing factual information millage



pieces (webpage and handouts). I also coordinated a volunteer workbee to help prep
newsletters for TBL and treasure maps we’re using as a special outreach tool to school reading
intervention programs (targeted outreach). We wrapped up the bookmark contest (innovative
engagement) and the winning designs are now at the printer. We plan to put them out in late
June.

Press: We were mentioned online or in print 26 of the 31 days in April. We were mentioned
online or in print 18 of the 31 days in May.

Website: April - 55,000 pageviews; 15,000 users; May - 50,949 pageviews; 13,000 users

Human Resources

Please join us in wishing congratulations to our new hires and internal transfers/promotions, and
best wishes to employees leaving TADL!

Newly Hired Employees:

Justin Williamson
FT Systems Administrator

Employee Position Transfers:
None

Employee Departures:
Nick Kandrot, Substitute

Respectfully submitted,
Danielle Baldwin, Finance and Human Resources Manager

Facilities
April: Bathroom renovations continued. Phase I of the renovations was started on March 11 and
those bathrooms were opened on April 18. Additional Facilities projects included:



● Installing new donated bench
● Research for revising/updating Lost Child Procedure
● Meeting with a security consultant to review facility preparedness
● New 1st and 2nd floor water shutoffs installed for increased plumbing repair efficiency
● New slatwall installed in Sight & Sound and Circulation Desk for item visibility
● All exterior windows cleaned

May: Bathroom renovations continued. Phase II is now almost complete, with the main public
restrooms on the first floor expected to open by 6/7/24. Additional finishing work will then
continue on the bathrooms that were renovated first. Additional Facilities projects included:

● Assembly and testing of the new Electric Bookbike (it’s fantastic!)
● Staining of wood hardscape along the children’s garden walk (photo by Erin of the

Children’s Garden)

● Review of consultant Security Assessment and Recommendations Report (SARR)
● Coordinate seasonal landscaping for Woodmere and East Bay
● Adjust clock tower time (a rare instance of one clock being incorrect)
● No-Mow May completed! Many pollinators were spotted everywhere.

Respectfully submitted,
Bret R Boulter, Facilities Manager

TADL Talking Book Library
The Braille Talking Book Library (BTBL) had their bi-annual meeting in April that I attended.
Among the topics we discussed were the upcoming Libraries without Walls conference
(adaptive technology), Summer Reading Club, and the National Library Service Biennial
Conference.

I attended the Libraries without Walls conference in Lansing. It was a one day conference
covering adaptive technology.

The National Library Service had a pop-up training on their Summer Reading Club. Some of the
programs that will be offered are a virtual escape room and a virtual choose your own
adventure. Braille and Talking Book Library in Lansing will be hosting two events that are only in
Michigan, a virtual tour of Isle Royale National Park and Birding by Ear.

Programs-



● Chair Yoga is still popular. We have a group of patrons who attend every month. 15
patrons attended in April and 18 in May.

● Project Kidsight is a Lions Club project that offers free vision screening to children. They
use a camera that takes a picture of the child’s eyes. A report is printed out and parents
are informed of any issues that need to be followed up on. 22 children were screened.

● I offered a nature walk at Arcadia Marsh. It was led by Steve Lagerquist from the Grand
Traverse Regional Land Conservancy. 16 people joined us.

● Ageless Grace is a program on neuroplasticity exercises. 7 people attended.
● Tuesdays @ Two read “Lessons in Chemistry” by Bonnie Garmusin April and “The Time

Keeper” by Mitch Albom in May.

Outreaches-
● I have 10 regular bookmobile outreaches to Senior Living facilities. Kim Wiggins from

Reference accompanies me to 5 of them and offers digital assistance. In April, we
served 106 patrons. In May we served 139 and I added a new outreach, The Pavilions.

● The Senior Center requested a presentation on the library. I talked about the many
different things we have to offer. 24 people attended.

● The YMCA held a Seniorpalooza in May. Melissa McKenna and I attended. We talked to
92 people about services and programs we offer.

Notary requests-6 in April, 10 in May

Anita Chouinard
Talking Book Manager

East Bay Branch Library
April and May of 2024 brought some new programs and outreach opportunities to the East Bay
Branch including:

● A four-part knitting class led by East Bay Patron and prolific knitter, Cara
Bagley-Aurand.

● A Grief Support meeting led by Munson Hospice Bereavement Coordinator and
Certified Advanced Grief Counseling Specialist, Erin Grey, and Library Assistant
Jody Wilson. Patrons were invited to drop-in to have questions answered and
gather resources for themselves or their loved ones in a casual environment.
This was our first time offering a program of this nature and we were very
pleased to have 8 attendees.

● Matt Archibald took the Bookmobile to visit Mill Creek Elementary.

● Our friends at East Bay Township kicked off the
brand new East Bay Corners Farmers Market
that will run weekly from May - October on the
far side of our parking lot. We are excited to
table at this as often as we can, and have been
connecting with many East Bay residents that
don’t usually make it into the library.



● We participated in Star Wars Day festivities for the
first time, hosting our own May 4th celebration with
themed snacks, crafts, and music.

● With the help of Jeff Godin and the Technology
Department, we were able to supply 333 students at
Mill Creek Elementary and Grand Traverse Academy
with new library cards.

In addition to these new items, we kept on with our regular
programming. We saw a high attendance for Chair Yoga with 12
people in April, and one occurrence of Sing & Stomp in May had 48 attendees!

Respectfully submitted,

Chantel Lentz
Branch Manager

Kingsley Branch Library

April 2024 was a month for celebrating at
KBL! Over 300 patrons and Kingsley
residents attended our 15th Birthday
Party for KBL (2009-2024), which was
also a secret surprise party to celebrate
our wonderful Early Literacy Librarian,
Beth Anderson! She has given 25 years
to our community as a Kingsley librarian,
and many consider her the heart of our
programs and operations. Three cheers
for Beth! Beth is pictured here (middle)
with students Bristol Helmreich (left) and
Lucy Graves, who both wrote and read

wonderful, heartfelt essays about how Beth has inspired their lifelong love of reading and
learning.



Other programs and points of interest for the months of April and May included:
● Partnering with Archangel Ancient Tree Archive to distribute Champion Black Willow

saplings to help reintroduce this unique tree across the County for Earth Day;
● The official launch of KBL’s 3D printer, with many thanks to KBL staff Brian Carey, and

the assistance of the Technology Department;
● I presented at the Senior Center Wednesday Lunch for National Library Week on

life-improving library resources for seniors;
● Star Wars Day (May 4th) brought out all of our community cosplayers and

galaxy-dwellers for treats, crafts, and movies… we were a regular “hive of scum and
villainy”;

● Staff Erin Dixon and Brian Carey attended a workshop on book repair held at Otsego
County Library, where they honed their skills and tried new techniques;

● Partnered with local farmers at Chaos Homestead in Buckley to bring baby goats to our
storytime the week of May 20th;

● And to wrap it up, we also hosted 62 classroom visits, 24 storytimes, 5 Teen Dungeons &
Dragons sessions, 2 Book Clubs, and 2 Simply Delicious with Chef Tom programs, for a
total attendance of over 2400 patrons. Oh, and we also planned what I am sure will be
our best Summer Reading Club yet!

Respectfully submitted,

Amy Monette
Branch Manager



 
 

 

 
TADL Board of Trustees 

 Finance & Facilities Committee 
June 4, 2024 

2:00 pm ~ McGuire Room 
 

610 Woodmere Ave. / Traverse City, MI / 49686 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Attendance: P. Deyo in person and S. Odgers virtually. B. Boulter, D. Baldwin and M. Howard, 
staff. 
 
Agenda Approval: It was motioned by Deyo and seconded by Odgers to approve the agenda.  
All were in favor. The agenda was approved.  
 
Minutes Approval: It was motioned by Deyo and seconded by Odgers that the minutes from the 
February 6, 2024, Finance and Facilities Committee be approved. All were in favor. The minutes 
were approved.  
 
Public Comment: No public comment. 
 
Finance: 

   
● Audit Presentation by Marisa Milliron and Heidi Wendel, Dennis, Gartland & 

Niergarth 
Ms. Milliron presented the finds from the audit. TADL again received a clean audit. She 
discussed some of the key findings. Odgers asked about the personnel costs which are at 
57%. Howard and Ms. Milliron said these are consistent with best practices. After some 
more discussion and questions, Odgers made the motion to accept the audit and forward 
to the full board for acceptance. Deyo seconded. The motion passed.  
 

● Policy 2.9 Electronic Transfers Policy 
After meeting with bank representatives from Fifth Third about financial fraud and 
security measures TADL can take to protect its assets, the bank suggested that Automatic 
Clearing House (ACH) transfers were a secure way to transfer funds. Howard and 
Baldwin amended the policy to allow for ACH transfers. The Policy and Personnel 
Committee offered some edits. After some discussion, it was motioned by Deyo and 
seconded by Odgers to forward this amended policy to the Board.  
 

● Request for Support for Revitalizing Debates in Michigan 
Mr. Merek Garland had emailed the Board asking for support for the Michigan Debate 
Task Force. Deyo was in favor of supporting this request. Howard will reach out to 
Pakieser about inviting Mr. Garland to the June Board meeting.  
 

 



 
Facilities:   

● Bathroom Update: 
Boulter said the project is going well. They are still waiting on some fixtures. The floors 
had to be redone because the first application of the epoxy flooring wasn’t acceptable. 
The second try was much better. This project has taken longer than anticipated mostly 
because of waiting for various contractors who are very busy.    
 
Deyo also asked about the E-Book Bike. Boulter said it is assembled and fun to ride and 
will hopefully make it to Farmers Market soon, weather permitting.  
  

 
Next Meeting Date / Time: August 6, 2024 at 2:00 pm  
 
Next Meeting Topic Suggestions: MERS Annual Statement, Decision to direct money toward 
the Unfunded Pension Liability; TV’s in Sight and Sound. 
 
Public Comment: No public comment. 
 
Adjournment: It was motioned by Deyo and seconded by Odgers to adjourn. The meeting 
adjourned at 2:38 p.m. 
 



 
 

 

 
TADL Board of Trustees 

Policy and Personnel Committee 
 

June 4, 2024 
11:00 am Thirlby Room 

 
610 Woodmere Ave. / Traverse City, MI / 49686 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

Attendance: M. Vickery, and J. Beuthin, Trustees. M. Myers, D. Baldwin, M. Howard, staff.  
 
Agenda Approval: The agenda was approved. 
 
Minutes Approval: The minutes of the February 6, 2024 meeting were approved. 
 
Public Comment: There was none. 
 
Policy Committee: 

● Policy 2.9 Electronic Transfers Policy 
After meeting with bank representatives from Fifth Third about financial fraud and 
security measures TADL can take to protect its assets, the bank suggested that Automatic 
Clearing House (ACH) transfers were a secure way to transfer funds. Howard and 
Baldwin amended the policy to allow for ACH transfers. Howard said this policy will 
also go before the Facilities and Finance Committee. After some discussion, it was 
motioned by Vickery and seconded by Beuthin to forward this amended policy to the 
Board.  
 

● Policy 4.7 Art Exhibition Policy 
Howard explained that there was some confusion about the section, Sale of Art within the 
policy. Howard offered the proposed changes. There was much discussion about the 
Director’s discretion to allow for the sale of art. Howard will develop a rubric for making 
such decisions. After some discussion, it was motioned by Vickery and seconded by 
Beuthin to forward this amended policy to the Board.  
 

● Policy 4.8 Display Case Policy  
Howard was explaining that her and Heather Brady, Marketing Manager, have had 
inquiries from individuals to display and sell their crafts/art in the display cases. Sales 
have not been allowed in the past but it was unclear in the policy. After some discussion, 
it was motioned by Vickery and seconded by Beuthin to forward this amended policy to 
the Board.  
 

● New Policy: Library Director Succession Policy and Procedure 
Howard has been working on a succession policy for the Director. This would guide the 
process in case the Director cannot serve in their capacity and how to guarantee a 
continuity of service in case of a sudden absence. Some elements still missing from the 



 
policy are: the fiduciary of the director, key personnel, the Board Chair and Policy, and 
Personnel Committee Chair. Howard took the suggestions and will revise the policy for 
the August meeting.  
 

● Request for Support for Revitalizing Debates in Michigan 
Mr. Merek Garland had emailed the Board asking for support for the Michigan Debate 
Task Force. Both Trustees were not sure if it’s in the libraries mission or interest to 
support this request.  
 

 
Personnel Committee: 

● None 
 
 
 

Next Meeting Date / Time: No meeting in July. Next meeting is August 6, 2024. 
 
Next Meeting Topic Suggestions:  Director Succession Policy 
 
Public Comment: None 
Adjournment: The meeting adjourned at 11:57 am. 





TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY POLICY MANUAL 2.0 Finance 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

2.9 Electronic Transactions Policy 

Purpose  
The purpose of this policy is to authorize and regulate the use of electronic transactions and 
Automatic Clearing House (ACH) arrangements for the Traverse Area District Library in 
compliance with Public Act 738 of 2002. 

Authority 
The authority to enter into electronic transfer agreements with previously Board approved 
financial institutions and responsibility for the oversight of all agreements shall be delegated to 
the Library Director or in his/her absence the Assistant Director for Technology by the Board of 
Trustees.   

Use and Monitoring of Electronic Transactions 

1. Electronic transfer transactions shall be used to transfer payment of salaries, benefits, 
or employee deductions/reimbursements; or for the purpose of transferring funds 
between Traverse Area District Library owned checking, savings, credit card or 
investment accounts.   

2. All other ACH or electronic transfers of funds are authorized within Board approved 
financial policies that define transactions and budget disbursement limits.  

3. All electronic payments must be reported in the monthly financial reports indicating 
service received, payment date, payee(s), and amount.  All electronic transfer of funds 
must also be detailed indicating amount transferred, date, purpose, and Traverse Area 
District Library accounts affected. 

4. All electronic payments must be approved by the Library Director, Finance Manager, or 
their delegate, prior to entry of the transaction into the applicable software system. 

5. Electronic transfers between the internal library bank accounts and/or investments only 
will be established at no more than $500,000 per day, regardless of purpose. Current 
staff members with transfer authority include: Library Director and Finance Manager. 

6. Access to electronic bank software will be restricted to Administration Office personnel 
on a need to know basis.  Each staff member with access will have a dollar limit 
established and authority granted specific to their function and transaction need. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
New on June 16, 2022 / Revised December 15, 2022 / Revised June 20, 2024 

 

Motion by:   _________________________________  Adopted:     Yes     No 

Support by:  _________________________________  

 

___________________________________________  __________________  
M. Vickery, Board Secretary     Date 













TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY POLICY MANUAL 4.0 Facilities 

Page 1 of 4 
 

4.7 ART EXHIBITION POLICY 
 
Policy 
The Traverse Area District Library strives to encourage education, celebrate culture, deliver 
entertainment, and inspire community. 
 
To that end, the Library, with the support of the Library Board, does provide a rotating art 
exhibit program featuring local or regional artists as well as occasionally sponsors online art 
exhibitions as well as themed art contests or competitions. The programs are designed to 
encourage community involvement in order to support the arts in the Traverse District Library’s 
service area. 
 
The public Library may choose to display materials from its own collection or accept 
applications from individuals to provide items for exhibition in a variety of mediums, reflecting 
an array of topics and interests, appealing to the diverse interests and concerns of the 
community. 
 
A Library Arts Committee composed of the Library Director and designees have the sole 
discretion regarding selection, exhibition period, and in what manner any art at the Library or 
on the Library’s website is to be exhibited. This committee retains the right to deny or refuse 
any exhibit proposal and also has the right to cancel an exhibit in its discretion. 
 

Guidelines and Procedures 
Selection Criteria for Art Exhibits 
The following are general selection criteria, a particular exhibition, contest, or competition may 
have additional selection criteria as determined appropriate and applicable by the Library 
Director: 
 
Aesthetics: Exhibit is pleasing to the perceived public and in keeping with the exhibition space 
design or the theme, topic or purpose of the exhibition, display, competition or contest. 
 
Quality of Exhibit: Art should be in good condition and capable of display in the intended 
display location. 
 
Suitability of Exhibit: Exhibit must be suitable for the Library’s physical and online limitations. 
Art to be displayed at the Library or any of its branches should not require climate control, 
physical security, or other special handling. Art must be available for a period of no less than 
the number of days the Library desires to hold the art for exhibition. 
 
Compliance: All displays must meet existing State and Federal laws on obscenity, libel, 
defamation of character, and invasion of privacy. Displays may not promote or represent any 
activity or purpose that is in violation of local, state, or federal ordinances or laws, including 
copyright and public performance laws.  
 



TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY POLICY MANUAL 4.0 Facilities 

Page 2 of 4 
 

A display shall not be for a commercial purpose, for the solicitation of business, for profit or for 
fundraising by an outside agency, for religious proselytizing, or to support or oppose a 
candidate or ballot question. 
   
Granting of permission to display materials does not imply Library endorsement of content; nor 
will the library accept responsibility for the accuracy or inaccuracy of statements made in such 
materials. 
 

Art Exhibit Proposal Process 
Art submittals will be assessed for approval by the Library Arts Committee. To submit a 
proposal, please complete and return any application or other submission required in 
connection with the exhibit, competition or contest.  
 
Prospective exhibitors should keep in mind that the display space is located in a very open and 
prominent area of the Library or the Library’s website; as such, it will be viewable by patrons of 
all ages. Accordingly, the library discourages proposed exhibitions that include significant 
elements of sexually explicit imagery, nudity, or graphic depictions of violence. 
 
The name of the artist/group responsible for the display must be included in any submission. 
 

Terms Applicable to the Submission of Art to the Library 
Grant of License 
If you submit your work for consideration, you grant to the Library(and its subsidiaries, 
successors, and assigns) a non-exclusive, perpetual, world-wide, unlimited, transferable, 
irrevocable, royalty-free license to: (a) use and publish your work, whether in whole or in part, 
for any Library related purposes, including but not limited to Library or Library event(s) 
promotional materials, in any form of media as selected by the Library; and (b) use and publish 
your name (including any professional name currently used or later adopted by you), likeness, 
and biographical information in connection with the Work for Library related purposes 
(collectively, “License”). 
   

Representations and Warranties 
By submitting your work to the Library, you make the following representations and warranties 
to Library: (a) the work is an entirely original work, or original reproduction or adaptation of 
preexisting works in the public domain; (b) the work has never been published; (c) you have full 
power and authority to grant the License; (d) the Library’s License will not infringe upon any 
rights of any third party; (e) at the time of submitting the work, you are the sole and exclusive 
owner of the work and any rights to the work; and (f) you have not previously assigned or 
otherwise transferred the work or any rights in the work to any third party that would be 
infringed upon by your submission of the work and the grant of License to the Library.    
 

Indemnification 
By submitting your work and in consideration of the Library reviewing or displaying your work, 
you agree to indemnify, defend, and hold TADL harmless from and against any and all Claims 



TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY POLICY MANUAL 4.0 Facilities 

Page 3 of 4 
 

that arise out of or are in connection with any claim of infringement by a third-party with 
respect to the work.  For purposes of this paragraph, “Claims” means any request for payment 
for copyright infringement, liability, damage, expense, judgment, settlement, lawsuit, cause of 
action, proceeding, decree, costs, expense, or fees (including attorney fees). 
 

Artist’s Responsibilities 
The artist will meet with a designated Library representative to review guidelines and 
procedures for coordinating the logistical details of the exhibit. 
 
The artist will complete and sign any submission required by the Library in connection with the 
exhibition, competition, or contents.   
 
The artist will supply items that are consistent in form, quality, and content with the original 
proposal. 
 
The artist assumes all responsibility for transporting exhibit items. For physical installations, 
receiving, installation and removal dates and times must be coordinated with designated library 
staff. 
 
The artist will supply titles and desired descriptions for items and provide biographical or 
historical information as requested. 
 
It is the responsibility of the Artist to insure any art loaned to the Library. 
 

Sale of Art 
Sales in conjunction with the exhibit are not allowed unless permission is expressly requested 
by the exhibitor/artist, and approved by the Library Director at the time of the space 
reservation. Exhibitor/Artist contact information can be included in the display for direct 
inquiries regarding the sale of exhibited items. Transactions may not be conducted on Library 
property and it is the sole responsibility of the exhibitor/artist to maintain a current sales tax 
license, collect, report and submit the appropriate forms and collected taxes to any taxing 
entities. 
 

Request for Reconsideration 
Persons who object to material exhibited at the Library may file a Request for Reconsideration 
with the Traverse Area District Library Board.  Following a hearing, the Board shall determine 
whether the material complies with the Selection Criteria as set forth herein.  The Board will 
provide notice of the hearing to the Committee and artist(s) affected and provide an opportunity 
for the objector, the Committee, and the artist(s) affected to be heard regarding whether the 
material complies with the Selection Criteria. Any request shall be filed at least 15 days prior to 
the next regular Board Meeting at which the hearing will be conducted.  The Board’s decision will 
be final. 
 

Care, Preservation and Exhibition 



TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY POLICY MANUAL 4.0 Facilities 

Page 4 of 4 
 

The Library will exercise the same care with respect to physical art exhibitions as it does in the 
safekeeping of comparable property of its own. Precautions will be taken to protect the 
exhibition from fire, theft, mishandling, insects and extremes of light, temperature and 
humidity while in the Library’s custody.  
 
The Library shall not be responsible for any damage or injury to any art exhibit.   And the artist 
expressly releases and holds the Library, its officers, employees or agents harmless from any 
claims due to loss or damage to or theft of an art exhibit while in the Library’s care and custody. 
 
Evidence of damage at the time of receipt of the art or while in the Library’s custody will be 
reported to the Artist immediately. It is understood that art which in the opinion of the Library 
show evidence of infestation, may be treated at the discretion of the Library. 
The Library has the right to determine which written and interpretive materials will accompany 
the exhibit. 
 

Delivery and Removal of Art Objects 
Arrangements for delivery of all art loaned will be the responsibility of the Artist. The Library 
cannot accept delivery and will not repack the art. Upon delivery, the Artist and designated 
Library representative will jointly complete an initial Inventory and Condition Report. The Artist 
will promptly remove a physical the art exhibit at the end of the exhibition period at a time 
agreed upon by both parties and the Library and the Artist will jointly complete a final Inventory 
and Condition Report. 
 

Reproduction and Credit 
Unless notified in writing to the contrary, it is understood that the art on exhibit at the Library 
may be photographed by the general public. Also, the Library may photograph or reproduce the 
art for educational, catalog, and publicity purposes. Unless otherwise notified in writing, the 
Library will give credit to the Artist in any publications. 
 

Change in Ownership or Address 
It is the responsibility of the Artist or their agent to notify the Library in writing, promptly, if 
there is any change in ownership of the object(s) or if there is a change in the identity or 
address of the Artist. The Library assumes no responsibility to search for an artist or owner who 
cannot be reached at the address of record. 
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
New Policy Adopted on September 17, 2020 / Re-numbered December 15, 2022 / Revised June 20, 2024 

 
Motion by: ____________________________  Adopted:    Y      N 
 
Supported by: _________________________  
 
 

_____________________________________ Date: ________________ 
M. Vickery, Board Secretary 





TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY POLICY MANUAL 4.0 Facilities 

4.8 Display Case Policy 

 

The Traverse Area District Library provides space for displays and exhibits of items from the 
library’s own collections, as well as exhibits and displays curated in conjunction with community 
agencies, organizations, or individuals. All displays must comply with existing library policies 
and procedures. 

 
Exhibits are displayed for one month, and must be scheduled in advance by submitting a 
request through tadl.org/displays. The Library reserves the right to decide the appropriateness 
of exhibit material to the public library setting. 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
New Policy Adopted October 15, 2020 / Re-numbered on December 15, 2022 / Revised June 20, 2024 
 

 
 

Motion by: ________________________________ Supported by: __________________________ 
 

Adopted:    Y      N     Date: ________________ 
 
 

_________________________________________ 
M/ Vickery, Board Secretary 



 

Financial Report Analysis for May 2024 

   

Revenue 

We have received 99.96% of our budgeted Property Tax revenue as of 5/31/24.  Revenue for Overdue Fines, 

Sales, and Meeting Room Rentals are all trending above our 42% goal for 5/31.  We should be receiving Penal 

Fine payments in July.  We received $7,722 in Donations this month, most of which was an unrestricted 

anonymous donation totaling $6,000 that we used to purchase some sparkly new book carts, book repair and 

maintenance machines, and East Bay entrance furniture.   Thank you to our donors!  Investments are doing well 

with $18,550 received in interest and unrealized gains this month. 

Expenditures 

Note that percentage of budget completed is 42% as 

of 5/31/24.  Line item details of note are below.  

• Personnel 

Our Goal percentages are different for this 

category with all payroll related line items 

(Salaries, FICA, retirement) having goals of 38.5% 

and all health benefits having goals of 50%.  We 

are meeting these YTD goals well. 

• Supplies 

We are slightly over goal for YTD Materials 

purchases (Books, Media, etc) due to annual 

prepaid charges and periodicals purchased in 

January, as well as our annual book leasing 

contract that we paid in April for the remainder of 

the year plus part of next year (’25 expenses are 

now in Prepaid Expenditures though). 

• Other Services/Charges 

Insurance and Member Library Allocations have 

been paid in full this year with line item 

percentages reflecting such.  Payments in 2023 for various software and self-check equipment rentals 

were prepaid and recognized in 2024’s YTD expenses, so this tends to weight our percentage of Budget 

Used higher at the beginning of each fiscal year, specifically for Professional/Contractual Services, but it 

evens out as the year progresses.  Other line items are trending on target. 

• Capital Outlay 

We had just one expenditure this month, which was the imaging/design of the new Electronic Book Bike.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Danielle Baldwin 

Finance and Human Resources Manager 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Revenue Personnel Supplies Other Svcs Capital
Outlay

TADL Budget as of 5/31/2024

 YTD  Budget Remaining  Goal



6/12/2024 12:51:49 PM Page 1 of 2

Budget Report
Traverse Area District Library Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 04/30/2024

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityRevenueCategory;SubCategor…

Current
Total Budget

Original
Total Budget

Percent
Used

Revenue

400 - Property Taxes - Current/Delinquent/Pilt 6,148,002.35231,047.216,155,304.00 6,155,304.00 -7,301.65 99.88%

500 - Grants - Federal/State/Other 11,796.500.0029,450.00 29,450.00 -17,653.50 40.06%

540 - State Aid Grant - Library 53,734.1853,734.18107,468.39 107,468.39 -53,734.21 50.00%

541 - State Aid Grant - TBL 20,536.000.0041,073.00 41,073.00 -20,537.00 50.00%

581 - Penal Fines 0.000.00150,900.00 150,900.00 -150,900.00 0.00%

602 - Fees/Services 17,000.000.0029,650.00 29,650.00 -12,650.00 57.34%

607 - Overdue Fines/Replacement Fees 8,268.711,763.3318,000.00 18,000.00 -9,731.29 45.94%

642 - Sales 10,881.252,842.1822,650.00 22,650.00 -11,768.75 48.04%

653 - Meeting Room Rental/Equip Fees 3,100.00800.002,000.00 2,000.00 1,100.00 155.00%

665 - Interest & Gains/Losses 15,869.633,648.267,500.00 7,500.00 8,369.63 211.60%

674 - Donations/Contributions 3,430.771,310.5026,200.00 26,200.00 -22,769.23 13.09%

676 - Misc Revenue & Reimbursements 1,757.4677.37505.00 505.00 1,252.46 348.01%

6,294,376.85295,223.036,590,700.39 6,590,700.39 -296,323.54Revenue Total: 95.50%

Expense

Category: 70 - Personnel

700 - Salaries & Wages 834,339.23207,794.342,839,018.45 2,839,018.45 2,004,679.22 29.39%

710 - Social Security/Medicare 19,880.274,971.0264,850.22 64,850.22 44,969.95 30.66%

712 - Medical Insurance 197,268.5963,574.34457,387.50 457,387.50 260,118.91 43.13%

713 - Dental Insurance 11,019.052,147.9227,149.51 27,149.51 16,130.46 40.59%

715 - Vision Insurance 1,712.08310.084,078.20 4,078.20 2,366.12 41.98%

716 - Life Insurance 3,707.07738.769,397.40 9,397.40 5,690.33 39.45%

717 - Disability Insurance 6,577.351,310.7316,268.03 16,268.03 9,690.68 40.43%

720 - 401K Retirement Contribution 34,483.408,707.37131,106.14 131,106.14 96,622.74 26.30%

721 - MERS Defined Contribution Retirement 56,078.4413,918.95185,086.79 185,086.79 129,008.35 30.30%

722 - MERS DB Unfunded Liability 40,000.0010,000.00120,000.00 120,000.00 80,000.00 33.33%

723 - Worker's Compensation 0.000.008,300.00 8,300.00 8,300.00 0.00%

1,205,065.48313,473.513,862,642.24 3,862,642.24 2,657,576.76Category: 70 - Personnel Total: 31.20%

Category: 72 - Supplies

728 - General Operating Supplies 67,191.2229,180.12217,350.00 217,350.00 150,158.78 30.91%

736 - Repair & Maintenance Supplies 3,831.931,093.4216,750.00 16,750.00 12,918.07 22.88%

741 - Books/Media/Online Resources/LoT 350,758.77117,282.30749,705.00 749,705.00 398,946.23 46.79%

421,781.92147,555.84983,805.00 983,805.00 562,023.08Category: 72 - Supplies Total: 42.87%

Category: 80 - Other Services and Charges

801 - Professional & Contractual Services 153,524.8324,962.20336,360.00 336,360.00 182,835.17 45.64%

804 - Advertising & Outreach 3,158.221,313.2043,500.00 43,500.00 40,341.78 7.26%

807 - Insurance & Bonds 28,557.00220.0030,574.49 30,574.49 2,017.49 93.40%

809 - General Equip/Building/Grounds Maintenance 116,873.5430,661.87328,730.00 328,730.00 211,856.46 35.55%

850 - Communications 8,458.821,581.6728,500.00 28,500.00 20,041.18 29.68%

921 - Utilities 32,275.2414,861.41114,800.00 114,800.00 82,524.76 28.11%

955 - Education & Travel 48,021.0938,802.65129,947.66 129,947.66 81,926.57 36.95%

959 - Member Library Allocations 718,841.000.00718,841.00 718,841.00 0.00 100.00%

961 - Misc 0.000.001,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00%

964 - Property Tax Reimbursements 951.610.006,500.00 6,500.00 5,548.39 14.64%

1,110,661.35112,403.001,739,253.15 1,739,253.15 628,591.80Category: 80 - Other Services and Charges Total: 63.86%

Category: 97 - Capital Outlay

971 - Capital Furniture/Equipment/Building 2,825.000.005,000.00 5,000.00 2,175.00 56.50%

2,825.000.005,000.00 5,000.00 2,175.00Category: 97 - Capital Outlay Total: 56.50%

2,740,333.75573,432.356,590,700.39 6,590,700.39 3,850,366.64Expense Total: 41.58%

Report Surplus (Deficit): -278,209.32 3,554,043.100.00 0.00 3,554,043.10 0.00%



6/12/2024 12:45:48 PM Page 1 of 2

Budget Report
Traverse Area District Library Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2024 Period Ending: 05/31/2024

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityRevenueCategory;SubCategor…

Current
Total Budget

Original
Total Budget

Percent
Used

Revenue

400 - Property Taxes - Current/Delinquent/Pilt 6,152,635.144,632.796,155,304.00 6,155,304.00 -2,668.86 99.96%

500 - Grants - Federal/State/Other 29,296.5017,500.0029,450.00 29,450.00 -153.50 99.48%

540 - State Aid Grant - Library 53,734.180.00107,468.39 107,468.39 -53,734.21 50.00%

541 - State Aid Grant - TBL 20,536.000.0041,073.00 41,073.00 -20,537.00 50.00%

581 - Penal Fines 0.000.00150,900.00 150,900.00 -150,900.00 0.00%

602 - Fees/Services 17,000.000.0029,650.00 29,650.00 -12,650.00 57.34%

607 - Overdue Fines/Replacement Fees 10,301.912,033.2018,000.00 18,000.00 -7,698.09 57.23%

642 - Sales 14,074.823,193.5722,650.00 22,650.00 -8,575.18 62.14%

653 - Meeting Room Rental/Equip Fees 3,700.00600.002,000.00 2,000.00 1,700.00 185.00%

665 - Interest & Gains/Losses 34,419.0418,549.417,500.00 7,500.00 26,919.04 458.92%

674 - Donations/Contributions 11,152.937,722.1626,200.00 26,200.00 -15,047.07 42.57%

676 - Misc Revenue & Reimbursements 3,372.461,615.00505.00 505.00 2,867.46 667.81%

6,350,222.9855,846.136,590,700.39 6,590,700.39 -240,477.41Revenue Total: 96.35%

Expense

Category: 70 - Personnel

700 - Salaries & Wages 1,043,214.20208,874.972,839,018.45 2,839,018.45 1,795,804.25 36.75%

710 - Social Security/Medicare 24,818.904,938.6364,850.22 64,850.22 40,031.32 38.27%

712 - Medical Insurance 225,533.0028,264.41457,387.50 457,387.50 231,854.50 49.31%

713 - Dental Insurance 13,198.922,179.8727,149.51 27,149.51 13,950.59 48.62%

715 - Vision Insurance 2,022.16310.084,078.20 4,078.20 2,056.04 49.58%

716 - Life Insurance 4,445.83738.769,397.40 9,397.40 4,951.57 47.31%

717 - Disability Insurance 7,888.081,310.7316,268.03 16,268.03 8,379.95 48.49%

720 - 401K Retirement Contribution 43,181.448,698.04131,106.14 131,106.14 87,924.70 32.94%

721 - MERS Defined Contribution Retirement 70,145.8614,067.42185,086.79 185,086.79 114,940.93 37.90%

722 - MERS DB Unfunded Liability 50,000.0010,000.00120,000.00 120,000.00 70,000.00 41.67%

723 - Worker's Compensation 0.000.008,300.00 8,300.00 8,300.00 0.00%

1,484,448.39279,382.913,862,642.24 3,862,642.24 2,378,193.85Category: 70 - Personnel Total: 38.43%

Category: 72 - Supplies

728 - General Operating Supplies 81,894.6714,703.45217,350.00 217,350.00 135,455.33 37.68%

736 - Repair & Maintenance Supplies 5,443.581,611.6516,750.00 16,750.00 11,306.42 32.50%

741 - Books/Media/Online Resources/LoT 397,015.7646,256.99749,705.00 749,705.00 352,689.24 52.96%

484,354.0162,572.09983,805.00 983,805.00 499,450.99Category: 72 - Supplies Total: 49.23%

Category: 80 - Other Services and Charges

801 - Professional & Contractual Services 176,665.6923,140.86336,360.00 336,360.00 159,694.31 52.52%

804 - Advertising & Outreach 4,202.451,044.2343,500.00 43,500.00 39,297.55 9.66%

807 - Insurance & Bonds 29,007.00450.0030,574.49 30,574.49 1,567.49 94.87%

809 - General Equip/Building/Grounds Maintenance 146,158.3729,284.83328,730.00 328,730.00 182,571.63 44.46%

850 - Communications 9,623.311,164.4928,500.00 28,500.00 18,876.69 33.77%

921 - Utilities 40,448.638,173.39114,800.00 114,800.00 74,351.37 35.23%

955 - Education & Travel 58,356.1010,335.01129,947.66 129,947.66 71,591.56 44.91%

959 - Member Library Allocations 718,841.000.00718,841.00 718,841.00 0.00 100.00%

961 - Misc 0.000.001,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00%

964 - Property Tax Reimbursements 2,096.671,145.066,500.00 6,500.00 4,403.33 32.26%

1,185,399.2274,737.871,739,253.15 1,739,253.15 553,853.93Category: 80 - Other Services and Charges Total: 68.16%

Category: 97 - Capital Outlay

971 - Capital Furniture/Equipment/Building 3,501.37676.375,000.00 5,000.00 1,498.63 70.03%

3,501.37676.375,000.00 5,000.00 1,498.63Category: 97 - Capital Outlay Total: 70.03%

3,157,702.99417,369.246,590,700.39 6,590,700.39 3,432,997.40Expense Total: 47.91%

Report Surplus (Deficit): -361,523.11 3,192,519.990.00 0.00 3,192,519.99 0.00%



 JUNE 2024 DIRECTOR’S REPORT – VICTORIA SHURLY 

Our crew of volunteers did a great job of assembling outdoor furniture and play items, installing our 
new Little Free Libraries and helping with several outside repairs.  These guys assist regularly all for 
the “pay” of  Bad Dog Deli lunch!   
 
PCL’s snail mail quarterly newsletter went out to 3800 households.  The newsletter covers June, July 
and August programming.   
 
PCL is gearing up for Summer Reading Club.  Our programs happen on Tuesdays in July, but 
registration, activities and displays kick off June 12.  The theme is Find Adventure at Your Library.  SRC 
is for kids, teens AND adults with prizes for all including a coupon for free Buchan’s ice cream!   
 
Many repairs happened last month including two furnaces that were not running properly, critter 
damage to the air conditioner units, an indoor lock that refused to work, and a filter replacement to 
the ceiling projector in the community room.  Hoping we are good for the summer now!   
 
The summer concert series in our garden starts soon!   July 11 at 7 p.m., Doc Probes is “All About 
Jimmy Buffet” with Rick Kiehl playing bass. August 21st 7 p.m. features Ruth and Max Bloomquist, 
Michigan’s folk music legends.  Pack a picnic and chairs or a blanket. Rain venue is the Community 
Room, no picnic!    On September 7 at 6 p.m., come celebrate PCL’s 5th anniversary in our new building 
with the music of Barbara Jordan, an old-fashioned hot dog picnic and cake (complimentary)!  Rumor 
is that Barbara is composing a song just for us!  End the concert season with our friends Gary Brandt 
and Jackie Davidson, September 12 at 7 p.m. when they return with their popular program, “Singing 
the Good Old Songs Again!”  Jackie sang with the New Christy Minstrels!    
 
Email message from a happy patron: “I wanted to express my sincere thanks to the Peninsula Library 
for all the effort put into the May the Fourth Be With You celebration this year.  My kids, 4-11, 
absolutely loved the craft bags and activities at the library.  We so appreciate all the hard work and 
creativity that go into making these items.  My children talked about it all week!  Peninsula 
Community Library is an integral and invaluable asset to the community.  Thank you for all you do!” 
 
  

PCL Fun Fact:  PCL has a Little Free Library on Power Island!    
 

Circulation May 2024: 2020 + 78 manual checkouts, May 2023: 1954 
May Volunteers: 14 people (1 teens), 36 hours of time to PCL  
Curbside pickups: 2.  Home delivery:  0.   New library cards:  9 

Hold Transit Counts May: 617 to other libraries from PCL, 328 from other libraries to PCL  
Programs May: 21   Participation May: 463    Reference Questions:  493 

Website Hits: Not available this month Twilight Baby Bags: 1, 1000 Books Before Kindergarten: 2 
Wireless Users:  165  Meeting Room Reservations:  10    

 
PENINSULA COMMUNITY LIBRARY 2893 ISLAND VIEW ROAD, TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49686  231-223-7700   

www.peninsulacommunitylibrary.org 
Like us on Facebook – Peninsula Community Library 

Next Meeting: July 11 at 4:30 p.m. 

http://www.peninsulacommunitylibrary.org/
















































































































Seeking Your Support for Revitalizing Candidate Debates in Michigan

In Michigan, voters' chance to interact directly with candidates for governor and senator in unfiltered
debates is decreasing. This reflects a national trend in which political debates are becoming less
frequent and substantive. The Michigan Debate Task Force has a solution, and we would like your
signature of support.

In addition to the dearth of candidate debates, any debates that occur in Michigan depend upon the
candidates’ campaigns deciding and negotiating the number, format, and location. Candidates will
negotiate the best circumstances for their campaign, not the public’s interest. In short, all debate
decisions are in the hands of the candidates, which does not serve the public good.

The signatories of this letter – a diverse set of organizations from the business, civic, and higher
education sectors in Michigan – seek to reverse this trend in our state and work toward improving the
information available to voters, thus improving campaigns and our democratic system more broadly.

To do so, we will soon publicly announce our intentions to host a series of three debates during the
general election phase of the 2024 US Senate race in Michigan. Each debate will be in a different
region of the state to demonstrate the importance of the geographic diversity of our state, including one
in Traverse City. In addition, rather than trying to cover all possible issues in each debate, the three
debates will divide the issue space and cover a subset of issues in each individual debate. This will
allow for a deeper discussion of all issues.

We are reaching out to seek your support for an initiative that aims to unite prominent leaders and
organizations throughout Michigan. By endorsing this project, you will be instrumental in enhancing our
credibility and strengthening our efforts.

We plan to feature the names of all endorsers on our website and in various public forums. This
visibility will highlight your pivotal support and significantly contribute to our project’s success.

We hope you will consider joining this effort to improve the quality of candidate debates and information
presented to the public during the 2024 US Senate contest.

Thank you in advance for your consideration.

Best regards,
Merek Roman

merekroman@gmail.com | 231.590.2434

Michigan Debate Task Force

Northern Michigan Western Michigan Southeast Michigan
Economic Club of Traverse City Grand Rapids Chamber Detroit Economic Club

Northwestern Michigan College Grand Valley State University Oakland University
Northern Michigan Chamber

Alliance
The Hispanic Center of Western

Michigan
Urban League of Detroit and

Southeast Michigan
Urban League of West Michigan

mailto:merekroman@gmail.com











































	2024-06-20 Regular Board Meeting Agenda for web
	2024-04-18 Regular Board Meeting Minutes - ABM
	2024-05-16 Study Session & Retreat Minutes - ABM for signature
	Departmental Reports for the Board, April & May
	Finance & Facilities Committee 2024-06-04 Minutes
	Policy & Personnel Committee 2024-06-04 Minutes
	2.9 Electronic Transactions Policy 2024-06-20 Revised with redlines
	2.9 Electronic Transactions Policy 2024-06-20 Revised for signature
	4.7 Art Exhibition Policy 2024-06-20 revised with redlines
	4.7 Art Exhibition Policy 2024-06-20 revised - for signature
	4.8 Display Case Policy 2024-06-20 - revised with redlines
	4.8 Display Case Policy 06-20-2024 revision - for signature
	2024-05 May Financial Report Analysis FINAL
	2024-04 April Board Finance Report FINAL
	2024-05 May Board Finance Report FINAL
	PCL Directors Report 2024-06-20
	Director Report 2024-06-20 with Ax MI Tax article
	2023 Audit Draft
	2023 Audit Draft part 1 of 2
	2023 Audit Draft part 2 of 2

	Michigan Debate Task Force endorsement request
	2024 Library User Survey Results

